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1 lived at South Lodge, part of St Catherine’s Court from 1962 to 1977. From then on I regularly visited my parents
and cousins, the Godwins. 1 have a good dozen relations still living in the valley, and friends. We mow the grass at the
Church at st Catherine’s Court. I visit the valley for one reason or another once a fortnight.

1 used to work with Steve Earle for the Water Board on a self-employed basis. The late Charlie Godwin was my 3™
Cousin. He lived at Paper Mill Farm and always parked his car in the garage near the top. He locked the gate, a single

galvanised gate every night.

Every winter the gate was locked for as long as I can remember. It was always locked over the Christmas period. 1
would then go the long way round to visit the Godwins at Beeks Farm, via Oakford or Ayford Lane.

The contents are true.

/-f"*“" 23- g 2019,

David Clifford.

NB \,5(')

CEE USER Noo &1 +NINCLUDE MY
WUTNESS STATEMENT  FROM THE
LAST (NQUIRY. THANKS.






Witness Statement of Jennifer Watkins
I, Jennifer Watkins of 75 Hayfield, Marshfield, SN14 8RA will say as follows:

Following my statement at the Inquiry last year, I remember the gates at the top of the
track being locked at some point over the Festive Season. I'would avoid using the
route at this time.

The contents of this statement are true;

Jennifer Watkins

11th September 2019

17th August 2019
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Ayford Farm
Ayford Lane
St Cattierine
Bath.

BA1 8HB

24/08/19

To Whom it May Coricern

[ wish to clarify point three of my previous Witness Statement because it has always been my
understanding that the closed road has never been a Public Right of Way.

Immediately after New Year's Day the gates at the top of the private road were locked, both
together as | récall. | assumed it was because of an annual party, At the Inquiry | did not think it
was significant 'enoug_h to mention but t was glad that Sheila Godwin of Beeks Farm said it.
Everyone local knew it.

The contents of this statement are true.

Robin Guild







Witness Statement of Sheila Godwin of Beeks Farm, St Catherine; Bath, BA 1 8HF
| Sheila Godwin do say:

This.is an addendum to my Witness Statement previously submitted to reiterate what | said at the
last inquiry. '

I remember the Rev Lane who owned Beeks Mill as far back as 1964 as at that time my family grazed

'_ our animals on the land on both sides of the valley. The Godwins maintained both gates on the
‘foute when it wasn't fenced on both sides. "

Rev Lane used to drive up the route to travel to Bristol and our cattle used to collect at the bottom
gate worrying Rev Lane that they might come through when he wanted to drive through. So my

fatherfenced the route all the way dc;wn' making it more of a track and keeping the cattle in the

paddock. My father would occasionally repair the track with gravel all the way to the top meeting
the single metal gate that was in place at the top.

My Unc'IE'Chaflie-.Godwin_parked' his carin an old garage at the top of the track and he used to lock

the gate as he was frightened that some of the local yabs would come along and steal his Hilliman

Jimp. Charlie died around 1982 but | can fremember that the gate was Iocked_pre\a'riousiy'-in the.late

1970's. | recalt a-worker we had here at the farm asking Rev Lane if he could use the track. One
time, Charlie Godwin overslept and the gate had not been unlocked at 7am one morning causing
the worker to be late as he then had to go "round-the_'lang way,

[ remember that Rev Lane had different signs over the years, one had Private Bridleway on it. | do
remember that Rev Lane used to lock the top gate himseif once a year around Christmas or New
Years when he and his family came to Beeks Mill and that this was to keep it private.

1 was brought up to believe it was a private road and anyone that used it had permission. Most of
‘the people that used it were coming to visit my family, the Godwins at Beeks Farm and they had

permission to use it.

The contents of this statement are true.

Sheila Godwin

Saturday, 24 August 2019







WITNESS STATEMENT OF DEREK WILLIAM TOGHILL

I, Derek T.o_gh'jiﬂ_, of 2, Gloucester Road, Lower Swainswick, Bath.
BA1 7BH do say as follows: -

I wish to clarify point number four of my previous Witness
Statement of 10th March 2015:

When I was delivering mail to St Catherine's, the gate at Beeks
Mill was locked every year. This was in the early part of the year
for a day or two. Ihad to go the long way round, up Ayford Lane
to deliver to Beeks Farm, Cottages and Mill. I never saw the
bottom gate locked. | |

A short while after the new owner moved in, new. farm-vehicle
gates top and bottom were locked. Next to these, side-horse
gates were unlocked to let the horses go up and down. There
were hand-made signs on all four gates saying the route was a
permissive bridleway. 1 was given keys to the padlock to the
farm-vehicle gates so that I could continue to deliver in the area. .

The route has always been nothing more than private access to
Beeks Farm, Cottages and Mill. The Godwins had grazing on the
land next to the track and I would see them sometimes, but not
very often. '

I hope this clarifies my previous Witness Statement.

I believe the coi;tents of this statement are true.

Derek William Toghill.
24 August 2019






Statement of Christopher Thornhill
Home Farm House, Lower South Wraxall, Bradford-on-Avon, BA15 2RS

My father in law, the late Reverend W M (Michael) Lane bought Beeks Mill and the surrounding
fields in 1964. | have known the property since the late 1960s.

The ownership of the property was transferred jointly to Michael Lane's children in 1987. He
retained a one-fifth share of the property and took a keen interest in it until his death at the
Millennium,

The family always used the property as a holiday home for week long and weekend visits and longer
periods in, for instance, the school holidays until it was sold in 2009.

The fields attached to the property were used by the Godwins at Beeks Farm for grazing but the
Lane family retained control of the private track. The Godwins, of course, had permissive access over
the track.

Until 1982 Charlie Godwin of Paper Mill Cottage kept his car in a garage at the top of the private

. track. He shut the gate each night and, when there was a spate of car theft, he took to locking it.

His wife, Alice, kept an eye on and occasionally cleaned Beeks Mill for the family.

In the early 1980s Michael Lane asked Valentine and me (we were married in 1971) to take over the
running of Beek’s Mill (I had property management experience).

Michael Lane specifically expressed to me the need to keep the track private; to achieve this he
explained he closed the route for a full day by locking the gate, at least once a year around the New
Year. My wife, Valentine, and | continued this practice.

I recall around 1990 organising the replacement of the original top gate with a similar new gate and
widening the opening to add a smaller gate to the side. The side gate was to allow people and horses
to use the route easily but was specifically not a dedication of the way as a public right of way.

At that time | arranged for a sign to be affixed to the gate that said it was a Bridle Way The wording
was “Beeks Mill. Bridle Way Only. Please Shut the Gate” My wife and | continued to lock these gates
annually, as we had done before, to assert that it was not a public right of way.

The cost of the new gates was shared with the Water Board (as had been the cost of the previous
gate erected in the 1960s) in recognition of the permission that Michael Lane had given to the Water
Board to use the private track for occasional access to their springs on the other side of the valley.
Similarly, they used, from time to time, to supply loads of chippings which they laid on the track.

Michael Lane gave express permission to use the track to a few residents at this end of the Valley
including successive owners of the Grey House, the Harper family at Monkswood reservoir, the
Lipyatts, the people who succeeded Charley and Alice Godwin at Paper Mill cottage. There may have
been others but | do not recollect them. A special case was the farmer, Breach, who was permitted
access to a gate into his field that lay just inside the gate at the top of the track. Breach’s land was



kil k

subsequently purchased by Mr Mclntyre and verbal permission was granted to him to access his
field from the top of the track. This permission did not extend to the use of the whole track.

On a number of occasions my father-in-law (Michael Lane) refused to give permission for
motorcycles and motorcycle rallies to use the track, in order to preserve the peacefulness of the
valley. Occasionally cars would appear on the track, either lost or exploring the valley. They would
normally be asked to return via the road to Marshfield.

My late brother-in-Law, Toby Lane, held a series of charity fund-raising barbecues/dances during
which the road was closed and the route blocked. | don't recall any other specific closures of the
road except for the annual locking of the gate.

In later years the occasional and infrequent permissive use of the route suddenly increased when
Mclntyre and his daughter opened up a business called "Doggy Doos" nearby. | expressly challenged,
Ms Mclntyre over her client’s use of the track. She was unhappy to be challenged and brusquely
refused to discuss the matter but | remember that this use decreased thereafter






Statement of Hein van Vorstenbosch |
20 Southbourne Mansions, South Parade, Bath, BA2 4AD

| worked at St Catherine's Coutt for seventeen years, between 1998 and 2015.
Initially, | also lived at the court, for four years, before moving to Bath. | moved back
to St Catherine in 2008, for five years. Between 2010 and 2014 | served as the
partsh chairman for the St Catherine Parish Meeting. :

It was always my understanding, that the secluded gravel track, beyond the closed
top gate, was private. | recall that there were "Private" and "Beek's Mill"* signs on this
gate, and/or on the fence adjacent to it. Indeed, during my early exploration of the
valley, | was told to turn around one day, by a farmer, who was cutting the verges.
He told me that | was on private property and that | should observe the signs!

| heard from the postman, many years ago, that he had' permission to use the private
track, when | asked him how he deliverejd the post beyond Beck's Mill.

Once, on.a very stormy night, | got lost whilst driving back from the Cathenne Wheel
in Marshfield. | had taken a wrong turn and ended up passing Beek's Mill, which was
occupied at the time. When [ came to the end of the private track, | found that the top
gate was locked. The ground was sodden and in the darkness | couldn’t see where it
was possible to turn around. | had to reverse all the way back.

During my service, as parish-chairman, on 13" November 2012, the St Catherine
Parish Meeting was asked to vote on the following question.

Do you support an Application for a Modification Order to the Definitive Map to
-record a public right of way over the unrecorded track between St Catherine's Lane
and Beek's Lane? Result of Vote: No 17, Yes 8, No opinion 1.

The late Peter Duppa-Miller supervised this vote.

- This statement is true to the best of my knowledge.

Hein Vorstenbosch
gt September 2019






Withess Statement of Steve Earle of Oakford Farm, Marshfield

1 Steve Earle do say,

1) Ihave lived in the area for 62 years. 1remember the Reverend Lane living at Beeks Mill but
didn’t actually meet him. In my younger days I used to visit the Godwins' Farm regularly as 1 was
friends with the Godwin girls. 1 thought the Godwins owned the fields and the track because Charlie
Godwin used t¢ keep his Hillman Imp-in the shed at the top of the hill. He always liked the gate'to be
shut and semetimes he locked it.

2) There was a sign at the top that said "Private™ and | don’t recall seeing-any horse riders using it
when I was younger but it was only used by people visiting the Godwins at Beeks Farm.

3) After Charlie Godwin died I remember that gate was still locked sometimes. Ofie time I tried to
get.to the Godwins that way and had 1o drive all the way back round and come in from the other
direction.. T used that way a lot more aftér that day because even though 9 times out of 10 it would be
open, that 10" time being locked meant T had to double back on myself to get to the Godwins and it
took twice as long to get there.

4) - I didn’t complain about the locked gate to the quivihs because [ thought it was their track and
they had a right to lock it if'they wanted fo. They fenced it down one side. The fence was made from
two strands of wire and their cattle were. the other side.

5) Sometimes both gates were shut and sometimes the top gate was locked. The bottom gate was.
never locked but 1 recall that even after Charlie Godwin died the top gate was sometimes locked.

6) Reggie Godwin never liked anyone walking the track unless they were visiting him at the farm,

7) 1 worked with the Water Board to repair the track in 1992-1993 when a new gate with a side gate
went in‘around 1993-1 994 with signs on about it being Private.

8) The gate that was replaced was metal, about 10/11 foot in width. The new one was in iwo
sections: a farm pate'with a smaller gate nextto it and the opening was much wider than the original
One.

The contents of this statement are frie,

Steve Farle

31st August 2019






Restricted Byway BAZ1/12, Beek's Mill, St Catherine

Witness Proof of Evidence

. , by
- Donald MaclIntyre
(Applicant and User 11)
Determi.nati.on by |
The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

SECOND. LOCAL PUBLIC INQUIRY October 15", 2019

Bath and North East Somerset Council
(Bridleway BA21/12, Beek’s Mill, St Catherine)
Definitive Map Modification Order 2017

Appeal Reference: ROW3186868

Doriald MacIntyre

Manor Farm, Langridge, Bath, BA1 8AJ

[Type text]



. This Proof of Evidence is made by myself, Donald Maclntyre, and is
submitted in support of the Definitive Map and Statement Modification
Order (modified) issued by Bath and North East Somerset Council on July
18" 2017. The modified DMMO seeks to record a bridleway between St
Catherine Lane at grid reference ST 7611 7106, along an existing track in
a generally north-easterly direction for approximately 200m, to the

border with South Gloucestershire at grid reference ST 7624 7121.

. I have farmed the land immediately adjacent to the eastern edge of the
Order route for 52 years. Throughout this time, up to 2012, I have used
the route freely and frequently, and as of right on foot, on horseback, on
bicycle, on tractor and in a Landrover. At no time during the qualifying
period, or before, have I been told not to use the route, has my way been
barred, have I been given permission, or have I seen any PRIVATE

notices.

. I support the Order and the modifications proposed by The Inspector in

his interim Decision.

. This second Inquiry is called in response to two objection letters
submitted in response to the Modified Order. The first from Robin Guild
dated December 12, 2018, and the second from Kate Chubb

(represented by Andy Dunlop) dated December 21, 2018. These two

[Type text]



Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek's Mill, St Catherine

objection letters, and their veracity, is important, because without them
matters concerning the Order could have been settled by an exchange of

letters, rather than helding another Public Inquiry.

5. The terms of reference for the Second Inquiry are to “hear evidence in’

the unmodified part of the Order”.

6. The OBJECTION by ROBIN GUILD dated DECEMBER 12“‘,_ 2018
Mr Guild, :n his abjection, requests a.further Inquiry, citing his
disagreement with the Decision of The Inspector following the first
Inquiry. He does not offer- any evidence in respect of the modified part of

Order.

7. The OBIECTION by KATE CHUBB dated DECEMBER 21% 2018

Kate Chubb, i'rj her objection letter, states under headings (1) and (2)
that she is unhappy with The IhSpectO'rs. interpretation of the evidence
presented at the First Inquiry. Under heading (3) she states that new |
withesses have come forward in opposition to The Order. (1) and (2) do
hot constitute evidence in respect of the modified part of The Order, or
witnesses (3) may well be seen as able to present new evidence

regarding the unmodified 'par-t" of The Order.

[Type text]



8. Kate Chubb, in her Statement of Case, elaborates on her challenge to The
Inspectors Decision regarding the unmodified part of The Order. She
states two grounds on which she challenges the Inspectors Decision. Her
first claim is that usage of the route “"was insufficient to succeed in
proving the case for a Section 31 creation”. Her second claim is that “no
period of 20 years uninterrupted use has been found” and that “the
owners took sufficient steps throughout their ownership to prove there
was no intention to dedicate”. I must say that this is completely at odds

with my experience as a regular user of the route over 52 years.

9. COMMENT on the KATE CHUBB STATEMENT of CASE

a. Page 1 and page 2 paragraphs 1-3: Here Kate Chubb re-quotes

statements made at the first Public Inquiry and adds nothing new to
the evidence submitted, other than to disagree with the Inspectors’
Decision. In this part of her Statement of Case she does not present

“new evidence regarding the unmodified part of the Order”.

b. Page 2 paragraph 4: Here Kate Chubb incorrectly states “when Mr

McIntyre started his ‘Doggy Doos’ business”. She spells my name
wrong, it is MaclIntyre, and I have never started, owned or had an
interest in a “doggy Doos” business. In this same paragraph Kate

Chubb claims that the then owners of Beek’s Mill became aware of

[Type text]



Restricted Byway BAZ1/12, Beak's Mill, 5t Catherine

residents of Marshfield using the Order Route. This may well have

been the case, but there is no evidence that usage was connected

in any way to Doggy Doos. Further, Kate Chubb states that “Mr |

Thornhill, as manager of Beek’s Mill, went to the home of Ms
McIntyre and demanded that she stop her c[iénts using the route”.
There are six female members of my family living in the area all
having, at one time or another, the surname Maclntyre by birth or
marriage. These six will submit Proof of Evidence that they have
never mé-t. or had any communication with a Mr Thornhill and that
he has never visited their home, We hope that ZKa'te..Crh'Ubb and Mr
Thornhill will stand as witnesses on this point at the Second Public
Inquiry. It is telling that neither made mention of these events in

their submissions to the First Inquiry.

. Page 2 paragraphs 6-12, page 3 ba‘ra'qraph-s 1-3: Kate Chubb says

that the former owner of Beek’s Mill, the late Reverend Lane, locked
the__g_ate- onto St Catherine Lane for one day each year at New Year,
S0 as to prevent a presumption of dedication. I have on occasions.
needed a back route home after celebrating New Year in Marshfield
and I have never come across a locked gate on the Order Route:
Indeed it makes Iittie sense to lock a gate at one end of a route that

joins the public highway at both ends. Further, Kate Chubb says

- that responsibility for the annual locking of the gate did .in later

years pass to Valentine Thornhill and Christopher Thornhill. Tt is

[Type text] o



10.

therefore very surprising that Valentine Thornhill did not mention
the annual locking of the gate in her Witness Statement of March
9" 2015. Equally, Christopher Thornhill did not mention the annual
locking of the gate in his Witness Statement dated April 26", 2011.

Both witness Statements were submitted to the first Public Inquiry.

. MODIFICATIONS to the ORDER: I support the Inspectors’ Decision

to record the route as a Bridleway. However, I also think that the
proposed wording of the modification is not sufficiently precise. I

have addressed this in my Statement of Case.

I will call four witnesses at The Inquiry, in addition to myself:

. Tom Castree: Tom has come forward since the last Public Inquiry

and will give evidence of regular use of the Order Route over many

years.

. Marsha Eli: Marsha will give evidence that none of her group has

ever met Mr Thornhill, that they have had no communication with

him, and that he has never visited their homes.

. Richard Davey: Richard was unable to attend the first Inquiry. He

hopes to be able to attend the second and will give evidence of

regular use of the Order route over many years.

[Type text]



Restricked Byway BAZ1/12, Beek's Mill, St Catherine

d. Edward Lippiatt: Ed submitted, at the First Inquiry, a User Evidence
Form and a conflicting Witness Statement. He will say that he was
persuaded by Kate Chubb to submit the Witness Statement, and

that it is not true.

11, APPLICATION FOR COSTS: Public Inguiries are time consuming for
| all, and expensive. The guidelines allow for an application for costs if one
~ side is shown to have brought a frivolous case. If it transpires, du.ring,

before or afterthe Inquiry, that this has happened here, I ask that The

Inspector considers an application for costs.

Donald MacIntyre, September 16, 2019
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Restricted Byway BAZ1/12, Beel's Mill, St Catherine

Witness Proof of Evidence

by

Edward Lippiatt (User 22)

Determination by

The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

SECOND LOCAL PUBLIC INQUIRY October 15th'_, 2019

Bath and North East Somerset Council
(Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek’s Mill, St Catherine)
Definitive Map Modification Order 2017

Appeal Reference; ROW3186868

Edward Lippiatt

Henly Tyning Farm, St Catherine, Bath, BA1 8HQ
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. This Proof of Evidence is made by myself, Edward Lippiatt, and is

submitted in support of the Modified Definitive Map and Statement
Modification Order issued by Bath and North East Somerset Council on
July 18" 2017. The DMMO seeks to record a Bridleway between St
Catherine Lane at grid reference ST 7611 7106, along an existing track in
a generally north-easterly direction for approximately 200m, to the

border with South Gloucestershire at grid reference ST 7624 7121.

. I gave evidence at the first Public Inquiry on August 7t 2018. At that

Inquiry I presented as evidence my completed User Evidence Form dated
April 30" 2017, and alsc a Witness Statement dated February 7" 2015.
My completed User Evidence Form gave evidence in support of the
DMMO. The Witness Statement gave evidence opposing the DMMO.
During cross-examination I was asked to explain this discrepancy. I

explained to the Inquiry that I was unwilling to do so.

I am now prepared to explain this discrepancy. My User Evidence Form of
April 30" 2017 was completed and submitted by myself freely and
without influence from another. My Witness Statement of February 7%

2015 was completed and submitted under persuasion from Kate Chubb.

4. The evidence given on my completed User Evidence Form is true. The

evidence given in the Witness Statement is not.
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Restrivied Byway BAZ1/12, Beek's Mill, 5t Catherine

. I will nat-go through my User Evidehce Forin and the Witness Statement

line by line. They are published for anyone to see. Suffice it to take one
example, I corréctly state on m-'y User Evidence Form t:haf there W-ere_'no
PRIVATE signs on the route d-ur.ing' the qualifying period. This contrasts
with the Witness Stat-emeht in which it is incorrectly stated that there |

‘were PRIVATE signs on the route during th_é- quatifying period.

I wish to withdraw the Witness Statement as it was subm'it_ted. under

persuasion and is not a true account.

I wish to state my support for-the Order and the Inspectors’ decision to

modify the Order.

1 attach as eVEden.t:e a .copy' of my Completed User Evidence Form dated

April 30" 2017, and the Witness Statement dated February 7% 2015.

September 16™, 2019

[Type text]




USER
-=12--

Bath & North East pypy |c RIGHTS OF WAY
Somerset Council

USER EVIDENCE FORM

Parish &for Name of Route (if known) BeeiTs e LAad

PLEASE NOTE:

« This form is designed to help establish whether or not the claimed route is a public right of
way. It also provides evidence of how it is used e.g. on foot, on horseback, by vehicles etc.

« [f the Authority proceeds with the claim, hut it is contested (e.g. by a landowner}, there may be
a Public Inquiry. Public Inguiries are usually held locally (i.e. in the village hall). If you are
unable to attend a Public Inquiry your evidence may be given in wrifing, but user evidence is
of much greater value if you attend in person and are prepared to answer questions on your
evidence {see Question 21). Inquiries are kept as informal as possible, and the Authority will
help you give your evidence.

» The information you give in this form will be processed in accordance with the Data Protection
Act 1998. it is held by the Public Rights of Way Team of Bath and North East Somerset
Council for the purpose of processing your user evidence,

» if a Public Inquiry takes place your evidence, including your personal information and
comments, will be made available o the Inguiry in order to be used as part of the case. if

~ you consent to Bath and North East Somersef Council disclosing the personal information
contained within this User Evidence Form to anyone reascnably requiring access to this
evidence, please tick the hox at the end of this form.

= This form shouid be completed by one person only and should relate to only one route. If you
need more space please continue on a separate sheet. Please use black ink.

+ Forms should be accompanied by a map and the person completing the form should draw the

route they have used on the map themselves.
Please return this form to the person who asked you to complete #, or send it to:

The Public Rights of Way Team, Bath and North East Somerset Council,



Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG.

If you need any help to complete this form please contact us on 01225 477650,

1. Name (Mﬂmrﬁmm -
EDWIANY. S e L AT

2. . Address: _ - -
Hevey, Tyvetiae, FAter. 91 GATHEAN &5,

| | AL DHE
l@"/{'_r_l'( ...%Pos’tcode:

........................................

Tolophone: ........cc...covveereeeene. ... (work) OIBO™ 24500684 . e
(home) |

: “-'3':Emall (4_,9_;4.1 ‘J{"V{’V’l’?f GH&TMV‘?'GCCD”"’

L -I_:J..'afftﬁ of Birth: . - NB: You do not have to give your date of birth,

#; Piease gwe aful descnptlon of the route you .use -;(e g: “where: you tart*from where you
- -igo and where you finish), m mark it on a map and attach the map to this form

| L REERS . Lt LANCG |

r_'“* ------------ _—"‘f"-_—--_'f.'_“'“"'--‘-""'"“"“---‘-.-"‘“-’--"-“"-----"‘N ----------------------------------
I ..ol ___ THE .. LAAE. X0 OET . PR EAOw-1 .
__--liy_z_t::z _____ :cm':'.  FAder  To__ AMSH FiEged. . TO_ Aol

-“"“‘--'--“"———--‘--—'—"-"‘-"“.“:.’.\f‘_.-,-_. -------- S M A EmERE R AL h S-S

‘— -..-.---.---...-_--.....-.___--__.._-_......'.--................_..-___a......-....-----...-."..._-.-.'....__-...'..-__--__‘.-........__._ ................
5.JHow have you used the route, and during which years?

('a) onfoot . . . | e between | 4ot Y45 |and

2(b) on horseback . L - : between - o and

. {c) on bicycle/horse-drawn vehicle ¢ ~ between . and

() with motorised vehicle . | [igsybetween | (485 |and |2ojo
{6. Wé_r_e'-the_re any years duﬁng which you did not usef the =+ | ¥BS- | . [NO

troute atall?



If YES, which years and why? between and
7.[How frequently do/did you use the route? [ I
once a
daily | once aweek month
_ (a) on foot '
"1 (b) on horseback
i 1 {c) on bicycle/horse-drawn vehicle )
| (d) with-motorised vehicle v
' I less thanonce a month, please specify how many times a year you use
the route.
b : “For what purpose do/did you use the route? e.g. for pleasure, going to work
8. efe. :
Averd (Ae | TAAERILL W TAmTy aHicdtr 4L
O se g
{Has the route always followed the line described | -
9. above? (;;E‘D NO
: If NO, please describe how, when and why it
t changed. :
10, How wide is the route? [feeffimetres] 2 | m
11. Has the route always been the same width? | (YES / NO
If not, how wide did itused to be? | [feeflimetres] e 1
12.{When you have used the route were you'-
{a) the owner | ¥EG NG
(b) the tenant vEs] | nO]
{c} an employee of the owner/tenant ‘?‘ES‘] NO | I
{d} a family member of any of the above : YaS| NO
of the land over which'the route runs?




[T ———

13.{Did you ever meet the landowner, their employees or fam:lv
' lwhile you were using the route‘? _
- ’!f YES, what did they say'? o
AOAKE A v lLE % EDAVE i DG I S ..
SO ETIM S A AT - ond
14. Have you ever been given permlssmn to use the route? YES 3
b L
if YES, who gave you permss:on and when'? :
e B2 ZE R 1| NSNS VU SO N
©16./Has anyone ever _atter_npie_d_ to turn you back or said that you YEa!  INO
had no right to be on the route? -
I YES, please give details including when {his happened. 1
& 6__; Have you -ever seen any notrces on or near the route either ' "Y‘Es NO
'ncouragmg' or discouragmg your use of it?: o
] If YES (@ "") where were they?' ___________________________ L
(b) what did they say‘?
IR (c)whenwere they present? between and| |
17. Have there ever been stiles, gates or bridges on the route? YES Kt
IFYES  (a) what were they? SATE | L1
(b) when were they erected? AvdAay syl Heed |
; o S THew '
(¢} how long were they in
iplaca? : _ :
e et EELR o
~ (d) did they prevent or deter you from using the N N
route? N¥ES:  INOT
{e) if gates were present, were they ever locked? - eSS INOT
g:' IFYES, when and __for'how' jong? i d b 1

Piease mark the location of any notices, stiles, gates or bridges etc. on the attached map.]

-18;[Has there ever been an obstruction to your use of the route?

&S |

NO1




IFYES (a) what was the obstruction?

(b) when was it put there? | ]
(¢) how long was it in place? | i
(d) did it prevent or deter you from using the route? YES | |[NO

. Te wee T

D E

—————

S I

A ERMENGensY . TTHend 0 & o A CETE il .-
. TG A PubBiie  TAACk TUHAT HAs bew |btocceo
® ol you wish to add any further details about the route which you cannot show on
the attached map, please sketch them here. - - '
1211 necessary, would you be prepared to give evidence at a YES | [NQ
. Public Inquiry in respect of the evidence you have given?

if not, please briefly explain your reasons.

o e et K A R i e A A e e o e

T L L LE Lttt Ll LR L

| confirm that to the best of my knowledge and belief the information | have given is true.

| also understand that this evidence may be presented at Public Inquiry and | authorise
Bath and North East Somerset Council to use this form for that purpose.

Date:] | |

i WO/ SN a4

IPlease note that the contents of this evidence form may become public knowledge.

| consent to Bath and North East Somerset Council disciosing the personal information contained
within this User Evidence Form to anyone reasonably requiring access to this evidence prior to a




iser Evidence Form Plan
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Witness Statement
of

Bdwazd § Lippiatt

I, Bdward Lippiatt of Henly Tyning Ferm St Catherines Bath BA1 851Q wish

10 make the following statefnents concerning the gravel track between Leigh

Lane and Beeks Mill;

1)

2)

6)

7

I have lived in the valley all of my life, 48 years. | farm about
€30acres in the St Catherines Valley.

In all these years the gravel track has only been used by locals (My
family, Harners and Godwins) and the postman, on an infrequer:t
basis, because it has been and stili {s very rutted,

' We had a'gentlemans agreement' to use the track with the prévious

owners of Beeks Mill, cutting the hedges in return.
As far back as I can remember there has always been a gate aga'i-lst
Leigh Lane, that was usually shut and had a private/no access sign.

Also please shut the gate, as it nortaally was.

Walkers and horses used the gravel rack, The previous owners used
to stop vehicles and mace them tumn around.

We orly use the irack for access to Beeks Farm and Beeks Mili.
Rarely do we use it to go io Marshfield.

The worTy is iX 1t i5 B0 aced to a piblic highway, cars and more

worryingly lerries will try and use it when the A46 is shut, These:

lanes ave not suitable for any mere treific, anc they wili get stuck or

cause aceid ants.

T confirn the contents of this stateraent ere true,

Bdward Lippiett.
7th February 2015
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Witriess Statement of Kate Chubb

I, Kate Chubb, of Begks Mill, Beeks Mill Lang,.St Catheririe, BATH, South Gloucestershire, BAL8AW
do.say as follows:

| would have submitted a statement at'the [ast Inguiry but Mr Stark of RoW Bath Council said in his
submission statement that he was going on years 1981 - 2001, [ rang him and said | did not see the
place till the early summer 2009 and so:'wondered if there would be any point in coming forward.
He sounded doubtful. There is evidence however which | can put forward from September 2009
onwards.

Background.

When we bought Beeks Mill-in September 2009, the owners, Mssrs Pease and Parry told me to look
out forthe place and manage it asif the owner. Ittook us two years to extensively renovate. |
moved ih in'Dec 2011, But between these dates, at weekends and often after school, my children
and | would come out to Beeks Mill from our rented house, nearby. The owners told me to lock the

gates when the builders were riot there at weekends. There was no construction fencing or

hdarding around Beeks. Miil's garden After the- postman had been on Saturday lunchtime | would
lock the gates and then nip back again on Sunday evenings to unlock them again. |did not doitas
often as'| should but often enough to:stop anything funny or accidents. No one local made any

‘comment or took objection.

| am aware that in 1992-3, the Water Board installed a pipe running from Monkswood Reservair
down through the valley - St-Catherine’s Valley main and flooded the area out, including Mr Breach's
milking parlour.! The late MrR. Breach wasn't interested in compensation. All he wanted to do was

get his cattie out of the milking parlour. When not being milked, they lived in the three fields beside-

the milking parlour and more often, immediately opposite it - on Harley's farm.? With permission
from thie previous owners-of Beeks Miil, the late Mr R. Breach rigged up a temporary exit out 'of his
field near thetop of the track at Beeks Milt with two strands of barbed wire.. After a time, the land
all dried out in the area, incl, at the Milking Parlour. It was obviously easier forthe late Mr Breach
1o drive his cattle straight-out of the Parlour across road te:their pasture than it was for him to block
the public road for several hundred yards and- then finally turn right into Harley's Farm. ®

Mr Maclntyre bought the three fields and old Mitking Parlour off the late MrR. Breach of Harley's

Farm on 25th April 1995.* He was.at that time living in Brookside, Batheaston, having bought other
land in St Catherine’s in 1993, The new land, joined up with the rest. Hethen moved to Langndge
With the permission of the Thornhllls he putina farm’ gateinthe place of the late R. Breach's two

‘'strands of barbed wire soon after he bought. *

When | first saw Beeks Mill, | n_o_ticed.that as the gates 1o the top of the track at Beeks Mill were
fairly tired Jooking, the signs rotten and thought it would be good to refresh them. 1 wanted to wait

1 Water Board's two letters with start and end dates of works. Sadly, after many requests by'me, the Water

Board have not wished to write.a statement or attend any Inquiry. The general consensus seems to be that

50%.of the cost of the new wood gates were paid for by the Water Board and installed after their éxtensive
works were completed. Ref User # 52 who also: attended the Aug 2018 Inguiry: :
2 Couhcil 2008 map.

ibid.

* Council 2009 map, op-cit.

5 ref Mr Macintyre's farm gate - left,



ST S TP

till the builders were finished. The farm gate is in retirement, outside my shed.® It had been
secured by an "L” shaped metal pin which slotted into-a hole in‘the ground. At the top of this gate.
was a metal loop to secure the pedestrian gate.” | replaced it with a new gate. The yard wide
pedestriah gate did not need replacing and is still there today, @

| replaced the near totaily rotten signs {one was disinteg"rated by a builder who covered it with his

own sign} which were then subsequently re-replaced several times due to va ndalism. (There were
several photos-of these at the st Inquiry so | won't repeat them here.} .| tried to make them like for

like, echoing the intention of the previous signs. | repeated all this set up just uphili of the lower
gate because the fencing contractor did not want to hamimer a gate post (for the iron gate} into the
bridge, in case he cracked it. | left the'lower iron gate in situ. My one real change to the entire'set
up was that both these gates set ups were now secured onto a strong centtal post each.® | was told
by our solicitor to lock the gates to the track top and bottom. The. permiissive bridleway signs made

it clear that the route was not a PRoW so | left the pedestrian gate uniocked.

| asked the Postman-and the Godwins of Beeks Farm to please use the'track. Also that same time, |
met Andy Turner. *° He asked for permission to detect metal and explained that Christopher and
Valentine had allowed him to. He comes often because moles etc turn the ground over all the time.

Mr Maclntyre's Dog Day Care Cenire, previously Mr Breach'’s Milking Parlour - was in operation for a

good few years before it eventually got retrospective planfiing permission in 2010 - as "Doggie

Doos". Itwas controversial in the Parish as no one jocal wanted barking dogs and dog customers on
the single track roads, but thanks to his application, | met everyone pretty soon after we bought.
Beeks Mil.

As-a newly self-contained business, Doggie Doos blocked off the usual access to the three fields -
which went with the old Milking Parlour. ** Mr Maclntyre was then in need of new vehicular access

‘to the'thrée fields.* He had apparently been occasionally using the access onto our track from

before we moved in but that with the grant of its planning permission (2010) his use very much
intensified. This coincided with his assértignstha't the track was a PRoW as | chalienged Mr
Melntyre over his usage, the nuisance factor and eventuaily telling him. his perrhission to use the
gate was withdrawn, This led to an emait dated 7th November 2011 from-Mr MacIntyre saying,

If you wish to restrict my access to this field you will triggeran application on my-part to establish
my rights.of access in law,

if you loose you will bear a greater part of the cost and you will have less rights than you do at

present.

6top farm gate, This is how too rotten to be moved.
7 ibid.

¥ orig pedéstrian gate

% ibid.

0User # 55

. ™in the same way that the late Mr R. Breach needed to get:his cattle out when his milking parlour flooded, the

only place found was off our track.

12 goe Council 2008 map op cit, It1s not possible to gauge from'this map that the enly foad access to/from these three
fields is_at-"f}o’ggie Doos”. Between Doggie Doos and the track, there is either a steep-bank, St Catherine's End House, an
easement for the house to.empty their septictank ard & huge wall followed by a vast bank.



| suggest that you manage this field access in the saine way as done by previous occupiers of Beeks
Mill.

| took legal advice and he was rebuffed.

In November 2012, Mr Maclntyre went to St Catherine's Parish to ask them to make a-DMMO
application to the effect that the track was a public right of way. Parishioners voted overwhelmmgly
that they thought it was not a public right.of way.

The following month, Mr Macintyre bulidozed away 4 large section of ancient bank, some of our
land and made a new and exceptionally wide access directly onto:the road. He then madetwo or
three retrospective Planning Applications in an attempt to get this neéw access-approved, These
failed on highway grounds and finally lost an Planning Appeal, {2013-14)

After | had moved in, i ended up with time to meet everyone. Robert' Hemms did some lawn
mowing for me here“and | offered his dad, Mr Hemms a key to the padiock, for use for the whole
family as long as it was sparing, notthree times a week: While Mr‘Hemms happily accepted the key,
he said his use'would be sparing as, seeing me take my sons to school every day in all weathers said
it'd be "too much of a business®, unlocking the gates and closing them again.

I'tended to honourthe same access licence holders as the Thornhills, where they were still alive and
if they seemed nice. e.g. The Harpers at-M'onksw__qod.House-‘a. Mr Maclntyre was not on the list of
hice-people. Apart from Mr Macintyre and Mt Strutt, [ocals accepted that it was not a Public Right of
Way,

One UEF individual {who | have never met) says (on the form itself) that ha cannot atténd any
Inquiry because he'd rather not get involved in & neighbolr dispute which is.exactly what this is.2

It'is my firm belief that the landowners of Beeks Mill have never dedicated the route asa PROW. On

the contrary, they have always been competent and at times ingenious (permissive horses but not
cars, except licence holders) about protectlng its status-as the exact opposite. Since 1993 after the
Water Bodrd finished supplying the valley with water from Monkswood Reservoir, and.a new wood
side gate went in, the track has been a permissive bridleway and | would like it to stay that way.
Prior to the side gate going in it would have been very difficult for rider to accessthe track: | alse
want to invite Bicycles back. Since my sign was ripped off, permissive brcycles have all gone. It's just
not our intention. It's still nice for them to use if they want to, as long as they are not asserting a
right of use.

I believe the contents of this statement are true.

Kate Chubb. 12/09/15.

3 :See Council 2009 map; op cit.

4 UEFH30



References _ |
(1} May 2012 photo of Mr Maclnityre's gate - left.

{2) Council 2009 map

(3} Water Board easemient.info letters {x2) with start/end dates {'92 & '93) and-information about
doing extensive works in the'valley.

(4) Top farm gate - this now sits cutside my shed and is not moved as nearly rotten,

{5) photo of the original pedestrian gate. -







Restricted Byway BAZ1/12, Beeld's Mill, St Catherine

Witness Proof of Evidence

by

Martha Lamb
Myrica Gale MaclIntyre
Ja_n_e. Lipington
Adrienne Sarah Maclntyre
Marsha Eli
~ Mischa Campbell

Determination by

The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

SECOND LOCAL PUBLIC INQUIRY October 15%, 2019

_ Bath -_ahd North East Somerset Council _
(Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek’s Mill, St Catherine)
Definitive Map Modification Order 2017

-A.ppea'l Reference: ROW3186868
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1. This Proof of Evidence is made by the above named in response to the
Statement of Case by Kate Chubb. In this Statement of Case Kate Chubb
refers to a “Ms McIntyre”. However, Kate Chubb is not sufficiently precise
for us to know to who she is referring. We have all at sometime borne the
surname Maclntyre, either through marriage or by birth, and we all reside

within the area.

2. In her Statement of Case Kate Chubb says that "Mr Thornhill, as manager
of Beeks Mill, went to the home of Ms McIntyre and demanded that she
stop her clients using the route”.

3. We all say, we have never met or seen Mr Thornhill, we have never had
any communication with Mr Thornhill, and Mr Thornhill has never visited

any of our homes.

4. We support the Order and the modifications proposed by The Inspector in

his interim Decision.

September 16", 2019

[Type text]






AN

Richard Pease <>
11/09/2019 18:36

To whom it may concerit,
I write this letter in my capacity as a trustee of Beeks Mill.

Kate Chubb, as the occupier, was asked to be responsible for general care and maintenance
together with ensuring that the house and surrounding property wis safeguarded.

We extensively refurbished the house and it was particularly important fo monitor/ restrict
public access over this period to aveid possible pilfering of building materials.

Conséquently, Kate Chubb was asked to lock the gate on the track, Due to this precaution, we
- inanaged to avoid any theft.

Once Kate moved into the property, this was I’ormahsed with a Landowners Statement (
section 31 / 1980 Act)

Richard Pease

21 Eldon Road
London WE&5PT

/7!’;1\.« A /?j“ .

-






Restricted Byway BAZ1/12, Beek's Mill, 5t Catherine -

Witness Proof of Evidence

| by
om Castree (User 60)

Determination by

The Secretary of Sta_.te-fo'_r Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

SECOND LOCAL PUBLIC INQUIRY October 15, 2019

Bath and North East Somerset Council
(Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek’s Mill, St Catherine)
Definitive Map Modification Order 2017

Appeal Reference: ROW3186868

Tom Castree

31 Fairview, Thickwood, Colerne, Wilts, SN14 8BS
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1. This Proof of Evidence is made by myself, Tom Castree, and is submitted
in support of the Modified Definitive Map and Statement Modification
Order issued by Bath and North East Somerset Council on July 18" 2017.
The DMMO seeks to record a Bridleway between St Catherine Lane at grid
reference ST 7611 7106, along an existing track in a generally north-
easterly direction for approximately 200m, to the border with South

Gloucestershire at grid reference ST 7624 7121.

2. 1 used the route frequently on foot at least once a week between 1979

and 2012, and occasionally on bicycle.

3. I am not and never have been an employee or family member of the

tenant or owner.

4. No one has ever given me permission to use the route.

5. No one has ever challenged my use of the route.

6. I have never seen any notices on or near the route that discouraged or

encouraged use of it. There was never a PRIVATE notice until 2012

7. The route has never been obstructed by, for example, locked gates, until

2012,

[Type text]
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Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek's Mill, St Catherine

8. I wish to state my support for the Order and the Inspectors’ decision to

modify the Order.

9, I attach as evidence a copy of my Completed User Evidence Form dated

August 7th™" 2019,

September 16", 2019
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Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek's Mill, St Catherine
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Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek's Mill, St Catherine

18. Has there ever been an obstruction to your use of the route? YES [_| NO

If YES (a) what was the obstruction? g 4
(b) when was it put there? #
(c) how long was it in place?

(a)adnmmummmm'um? > E NO I:]
Please mark the location of any obstructions on the a

- . -,u"o -I*-_—- a.

r,- "..-

Ve
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it Restricted Byway BA21/12, Beek's Mill, St Catherine —

Beeks Lane, St Catherine, Bath

Application for a Modification Order to the Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of
] Way

Please indicate the route on the map beiow

- [Type text]






Witness Statement of Jim Creed
I Jim Creed of 5 Ayford Cottages, Ayford Lane, Marshfield SN14 8AB will say as follows:
| grew up in Starfall Farm, Northend Batheaston. | have lived in the area for 50 years.

As a youngster, | was always aware of the gate that was across the bottom of Beeks Mill Lane.
Access to the track was not available to general traffic. People had to have permission to use it.
Occasionally it was locked but | was never aware of any times or dates in particular.

Having lived in the village (Marshfield) for the last 25 years | have always been of the belief that
access through the bottom of Beeks Mill was not general.

| believe the contents of this statement are true.

Jim Creed

15 September 2019






Witness Statement of Geoffrey Ball

I Geoffrey Ball of 3 West Littleton Road, Marshfield. SN14 SNF will say as
follows:

T'used to go down that way to ring the church bells at St Catherine's Church,

next to the Court. I got married there. In the old days, I used to go down on my
bicycle. These days, not very much! I am eighty five and have lived in

Marshfield all my life.

I used to go visiting Reggie Godwin from before he got married. [ have been
going down visiting the farm once a week for years.

] have always understood the lane at Beeks Mill to be a nice old farm track. It
is part of St Catherine's but not a public right of way. They used to block it off
sometimes. People could get permission to use it.

I believe the contents are true.

_ A g o
Geoffrey Ball.. . éff‘ a&% i@?/ /@« @hwjﬁ }'30,@,

14th September 2019






Witness Statement of Andrew Turner

1, Andrew Turner of 18 Withymead Road, Marsh_ﬁeld. SN 14 8PB will say as follows,

I have been out detecting all these ﬁelds in and around Beeks Mill since 1992, twice a
month on average, someétimes more often.

I wish to clarify a few things subsequent to'my previous Statement. It ‘was said at.
the Inquiry that the gates were locked once a year. I never knew why because I never asked
but I remember that they were locked occasionally.

Christopher and Valentine Thornhill were there on holiday at Christmas
time but they were never there on actual Xmas Day. They'd arrive immediately after. They
would go away after the New Year, at the end of the school holidays. They would lock the
gates around this time.

In winter, you could only really go up the track in a 44 but it hasn't been till more
recently that 4x4s have become so popular. There is a big drop near the iron gate. Isaw the
iron gate on the stream locked sometimes, not very often.

The contents of this statement are true.

Andrew Turner |
Monday, 26 August 2019

£






Witness Statement of Becky Dymond.

I, Becky Dymond, of Applegates Stables, Shockerwick Lane, Bannerdown. Bath BA1 7LQ will
say as follows:

At the Inquiry of August 2018 it was noted that | could not recall the exact wording of the signs
on the gates. | would just like to say for the record what | said at the Inquiry immediately in
respanse ta this point: "it felt private”. | was thinking so hard about the signs and my use that |
did not remotely think to mention my non use. | once rode out that way in the depths of
winter only to find that the gates were locked. As the route "felt private", it did not seem
strange. It would be incorrect to conflate my fallibility of memory with my use, "as of right".

| sometimes rode with other riders over the years. We were all of one mind, that horses were
very simply, allowed, but not 'as of right'. The signs were not at eye-level and none of us took
much notice of them. | never saw another rider | was not riding with. In the depths of winter
when we found the gates locked we thought it must be because of the hunt. There were
suddenly a lot more cars parked in all the passing places along all the roads. No one in their
right mind would want horses driven into. | simply avoided riding down that way when the hunt
were out, or in the depths of winter in case they were. | never questioned it because "it felt
private”.

| say all this without also saying that | am particularly upright either. If | see a route and it looks
safe enough for my horse, | am only too keen to use it. | simply help myself if it does not feel
private. There are lots of these routes, no signs and no objection to use of any kind, shape or
form; it's an obvious free-for-all. | can think of several gallops | do locally where a right of way
has probably sprung up. At Beeks Mill, on the contrary, there were gates, signs and in the
depths of winter, no passage at all.

I would also like to add that the gates were always closed when | went out there too. Itis
incorrect to think that they were mostly open. They just weren't! Anyway, if they were open,
(which | never witnessed) you would be able to see the signs for longer coming from St
Catherine's - which was the direction of the horse-riders that | knew. There may also have
been a consensus of opinion about them at the Inquiry as they'd be better remembered.

| hope this corrects any assumptions made at the Inquiry about the vagueness of my
recollections about signs. Over the years, they have changed, more recently, more regularly.
Now there's only a tiny little circular plate which no one can even read from horseback. It still
feels private though!

The contents are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Becky Dymond. / 1/f‘ /"ﬁf’h L /{ ( /

14th September 2019






- Witness statement of Bob King

| Bob King of Ridgeway Farm Ashwick. SN14 8AD will say as follows:

| have known the track past Beeks M itl-all my life - for the past forty years. 1 'have always understood

it to be a private, not a'public.r_-i_ght of way.

| have used it over the years with discretion. | always understood that | could be asked to turn
around. It did not lead anywhere really. The postman used it. He was in his.occupation.

Going back some time ago we did a-charity tractor run.with John-Wri"ght and asked for perthission to
useit.

‘Now-and-again they locked it. | don't know when.

[ believe the contents of this statement are true,

Bob King

14th September 2019




